
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 15 MAY 2014 

Time: 1.45pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Ken Ayers 

Deputy Billy Dove 
Simon Duckworth 
Marianne Fredericks 
Stuart Fraser 
Deputy Stanley Ginsburg 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Wendy Mead 
Alderman Matthew Richardson 
Ian Seaton 
The Rt Hon the Lord Mayor Alderman Fiona Woolf (Ex-Officio Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Philippa Sewell  

tel. no.: 020 7332 1426 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL 
 To appoint the Committee and approve its Terms of Reference. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
4. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
 To elect a Chairman pursuant to Standing Order No. 29. 
 For Decision 
5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
 To elect a Deputy Chairman pursuant to Standing Order No. 30. 
 For Decision 
6. MINUTES 
 To agree the minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 10 April 2014. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
7. APPOINTMENT TO THE SOCIAL INVESTMENT BOARD 
 Report of the Town Clerk.  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 11 - 12) 

 
8. OUTSTANDING ITEMS 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 13 - 14) 

 
9. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 24) 

 
10. WEMBLEY NATIONAL STADIUM TRUST UPDATE 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 25 - 32) 

 
11. GRANT APPLICATIONS STATISTICAL REPORT 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 33 - 44) 

 



3 
 

12. GRANTS AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 
ASSESSMENTS - WORKING WITH LONDONERS 

 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s reports on grant recommendations as follows:- 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 45 - 46) 

 
 a) Resource for London  (Pages 47 - 60) 

 

13. GRANTS AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 
ASSESSMENTS - INVESTING IN LONDONERS 

 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s reports on grant recommendations as follows:- 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 61 - 62) 

 
 a) The New Cross Gate Trust  (Pages 63 - 72) 

 

 b) Room to Heal  (Pages 73 - 84) 
 

 c) Contemporary Dance Trust  (Pages 85 - 94) 
 

 d) Disablement Association Hillingdon (DASH)  (Pages 95 - 104) 
 

 e) Greenwich+Docklands Festivals  (Pages 105 - 116) 
 

 f) Parents and Abducted Children Together (PACT)  (Pages 117 - 128) 
 

 g) FareShare  (Pages 129 - 140) 
 

 h) Prison Advice and Care Trust  (Pages 141 - 152) 
 

 i) Worldwide Volunteering (WWV)  (Pages 153 - 166) 
 

 j) Local Accountancy Project  (Pages 167 - 178) 
 

 k) Volunteer Centre Hounslow  (Pages 179 - 192) 
 

14. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS FOLLOWS:- 
 

For Decision 
 a) Grants Recommended for Rejection  (Pages 193 - 200) 

 

 b) Grants Approved under Delegated Authority  (Pages 201 - 202) 
 

 c) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  (Pages 203 - 204) 
 

 d) Variations to Grants  (Pages 205 - 206) 
 

 e) Reports on Monitoring Visits  (Pages 207 - 212) 
 

15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 
 
17. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 



 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
18. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 10 April 2014. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 213 - 214) 

 
19. STRATEGIC INITIATIVES:  BEACON FELLOWSHIP AWARDS 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 215 - 220) 

 
20. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
21. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 10 April 2014  
 

Minutes of the meeting of The City Bridge Trust Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on 
Thursday, 10 April 2014 at 1.45pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 
Jeremy Mayhew (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers 
Simon Duckworth 
Marianne Fredericks 
Deputy Stanley Ginsburg 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
Ian Seaton 

 
Officers: 
Xanthe Couture   - Town Clerk’s Department 
Philippa Sewell   - Town Clerk’s Department 
Graham Lee   - Town Clerk’s Department 
Steven Reynolds    - Chamberlain’s Department 
Laura Yeo     - Chamberlain’s Department 
David Farnsworth   - The City Bridge Trust 
Jenny Field    - The City Bridge Trust 
Ciaran Rafferty   - The City Bridge Trust 
Jemma Grieve Combes  - The City Bridge Trust 
Julie Mirkin    - The City Bridge Trust 
Rachel Mortell   - Public Relations Office 
 
In Attendance: 

• Wai-Mei Chan (Centre for Accessible Environments) 

• Stephanie Brittan (Association of Charitable Foundations) 

• Community Action Southwark 

• Friends of Tower Hamlets Cemetery Park 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Stuart Fraser and the Rt Hon the Lord Mayor 
Alderman Fiona Woolf.  
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
The Chairman and Marianne Fredericks declared non-pecuniary interests in 
Item 7B by virtue of supporting the Friends of Tower Hamlets Cemetery Park. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 3



The Chairman also declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 7F by virtue of 
supporting the Connaught Opera and did not take part in the discussion of that 
item.  
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the last meeting held on 13 March 2014 be 
approved as a correct record, subject to the following amendments: 
 
Members Declarations Under the Code of Conduct in Respect of Items on the 
Agenda 
“?as his Livery Company supported London Youth”.  
 
Progress Report and Events 
“?b) the Draft City Bridge Trust Business Plan?” 
 

4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS  
The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk that identified items which 
required further action by officers.  
 
Council of Somali Organisations 
Members noted that the present Interim Director would remain in post until April 
2015 therefore the condition did not need to apply until then.  
 
Paddington Development Trust 
Members noted that this report was due by 31 March and officers undertook to 
check whether it had been received. 
 

5. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS  
The Committee considered the regular progress report and events update of 
the Chief Grants Officer.  
 
The Chief Grants Officer drew Members’ attention to the presentation of the 
first Gold Award of the London Youth Quality Mark Scheme which had been 
attended by the Chairman and the Principal Grants Officer. He also highlighted 
the Charity Commission’s advice on campaigning which had been included in 
the report as a result of a discussion held at the previous meeting. He reported 
that ‘awareness raising’ would qualify as campaigning and that charities must 
not give funding to a political party, candidate or politician.  
 
The Chief Grants Officer reported on the intention to use the underspend from 
the 2013/14 grants budget to amplify grant-making to celebrate the 20th 
Anniversary of the City Bridge Trust. Following discussions with the 
Chamberlain’s Department and the Town Clerk, it was agreed that the City 
Bridge Trust Committee would instruct officers to request that the £3,533,480 
remaining from the Trust’s 2013/14 grants budget be carried forward into its 
grants budget for 2014/15. Members agreed that a report be submitted to the 
May meeting of the City Bridge Trust Committee seeking its approval of the 
proposal before it is submitted to the Chamberlain and the Chairman and 
Deputy Chairman of the Resource Allocation Sub Committee of the Policy and 
Resources Committee. In response to a Member’s question the Chief Grants 

Page 4



Officer confirmed that he was confident that the Trust would not have an 
underspend in 2014/15 subject to processes being in place to ensure this, 
which were detailed more fully in the Business Plan.  
 
With regard to Social Investment, the Chief Grants Officer stated that a report 
would be submitted to the May meeting of the City Bridge Trust Committee 
which would outline the full programme proposal and mechanics of the 
“Transition Fund” which would provide an opportunity for bridging the evident 
gap between grantees and investees.  
 
RESOLVED – That: 

i) the report be noted; 
ii) the final version of the 2014/2015 City Bridge Trust Business Plan be 

approved; and  
iii) officers be instructed to request that the £3,533,480 remaining from the 

Trust’s 2013/14 grants budget be carried forward into the Trust’s grants 
budget for 2014/15.  

 
The Committee was addressed by Wai-Mei Chan, Access and Sustainability 
Advisor for the Centre for Accessible Environments, who informed Members 
that the City Bridge Trust's Making London More Inclusive programme had 
been internationally recognised as a Zero Project Innovative Practice 2014 for 
Accessibility. Wai Chan presented the scheme at the Zero Project Conference 
in Vienna, which was attended by 470 delegates.  
 
The programme was commended for its inclusive approach to facilitating 
professional access advice as well as grants for community building 
improvements and services. The Accessible and Sustainable Buildings grant is 
supported by Centre for Accessible Environment's Access and Sustainability 
Advisory Service and access audits and design appraisals by independent 
access consultants, which are also funded by the Trust. With this specialist 
access advice, community organisations are able to provide better access to 
their buildings and services. The emphasis on local user consultation and 
disability equality training was also commended. 
 
Members congratulated Wai Chan on the Award and asked for the Trust’s 
Press Officer to look into proactively promoting this news.  
 

6. GRANT APPLICATIONS STATISTICAL REPORT  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer that 
summarised applications received and action taken under the 2014/15 grants 
programmes. Members noted that the £3.5million underspend from the Trust’s 
2013/14 grants was not included in the confirmed grants budget for 2014/15.  
 
In response to a Member’s questions, the Chief Grants Officer reported that it 
was too early in the financial year to determine or predict any trends, or to 
judge whether any programmes were more successful than others. Members 
noted that the City Bridge Trust averaged a 50% success rate which compared 
favourably with other Trusts.  
 

Page 5



In response to a request from the Deputy Chairman, it was agreed that Access 
Audits would be separately identified in future reports and figures relating to the 
average size of grants in each category would be included in six-monthly 
reports.  
 
RESOLVED – that: 

i) access audits be separately identified in future reports; 
ii) figures relating to the average size of grants in each category would be 

included in future six-monthly reports; 
iii) the report be noted; and 
iv) the grant recommendations in the subsequent annexes be considered.  

 
7. GRANTS AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 

ASSESSMENTS  
Item 7a (Paladin – National Stalking Advocacy Service CIC) – In response 
to Members’ queries, officers reported that the charity did not work exclusively 
with women, and it had been informed a formal reserves policy must be 
developed but that the detail was yet to be set. 

 
Item 7c (One North East London) – In response to a Member’s query, officers 
confirmed that this charity focussed on working with people affected by drugs 
and alcohol addiction and did not provide specific help for those affected by 
other addictions such as gambling.  
 
Item 7d (London Symphony Orchestra Limited) – Officers confirmed that 
this funding request was for the charity’s outreach work, and as such was 
unrelated to funding given to the LSO by the City of London Corporation 
elsewhere. Members queried why the recommended grant exceeded the 
amount requested and the Chief Grants Officer reported that during the course 
of the application it became apparent that a better method to evaluate and 
share best practice with other organisations was required to optimise the work 
being done. The additional £15,000 being requested would fund a ‘Critical 
Friend’ over 3 years to work alongside and evaluate the project and offer 
suggestions as it progressed. Members requested that the revised figures be 
clarified in the Chief Grants Officer’s report at the next meeting. 
 
Item 7e (Shine) – In response to a Member’s query, officers reported that 
funding for one additional post was being requested but that the charity had the 
equivalent of two and a half posts overall. Members also noted that the 
requested amount had increased due to the need for a laptop and to fund 
attendance of meetings in London.  
 
Item 7f (Connaught Opera) – In response to a Member’s query officers 
responded that DVD creation and distribution would be difficult for the charity to 
take on considering their limited capacity. Members expressed their support for 
the organisation and proposed that the grant be extended for a third year and in 
line with the original request. This would be within the City Bridge Trust’s policy.  
 
 

Page 6



7a Paladin - National Stalking Advocacy Service CIC - Recommended 
Grant £140,000  

 
£140,000 over three years (£46,000; £46,500; £47,000) towards the salary of a 
Caseworker and to meet the shortfall in the salary of a second caseworker to 
provide an advocacy service for victims of stalking in London, the grant to be 
received by the charity Safer Places.  
 
7b Friends of Tower Hamlets Cemetery Park - Recommended Grant 

£49,050  
 
£49,050 over three years (£19,050; £15,000; £15,000) towards the costs of a 
full time (37.5 hours per week) Training, Leisure Learning and Community 
Consultancy Coordinator to develop the charity’s environmental education 
services.  
 
7c One North East London - Recommended Grant £38,000  
 
£38,000 over three years (£8,000; £15,000; £15,000) towards the salary costs 
of the full-time Counsellor for the NE Teens project.  
 
7d London Symphony Orchestra Limited - Recommended Grant 

£172,000  
 
£172,000 over three years (£54,000; £58,000; £60,000) towards the delivery 
and evaluation of LSO Create: creative music making activity for adults with 
learning disabilities at LSO St Luke’s, the Barbican and in residential/day care 
centres.  
 
7e Shine - Recommended Grant £78,750  
 
£78,750 over three years (£27,050; £26,650; £25,050) towards the salary of a 
f/t London Support and Development Worker and related costs.  
 
7f Connaught Opera - Recommended Grant £20,000  
 
£33,660 over 3 years (3 x £11,220) for a programme of musical concerts for 
older people conditional on match funding being raised before each quarterly 
release of funding in Years 1, 2 and 3 and subject to a satisfactory monitoring 
framework being agreed with the organisation.  
 
7g North Kensington Law Centre - Recommended Grant £150,000  
 
£150,000 over three years towards the salary of a Triage Co-ordinator and 
associated running costs of establishing a triage system within the law centre.  
 
7h PLIAS Resettlement - Recommended Grant £120,000  
 
£120,000 over three years (3 x £40,000) towards the salary and overhead costs 
of a full-time Employment Caseworker.  

Page 7



7i Community Action Southwark - Recommended Grant £146,900  
 
£146,900 over three years (£47,800; £49,100; £50,000) towards a full-time (35 
hours per week) Outcomes Framework Development Officer and running costs 
for Community Action Southwark’s monitoring and evaluation support 
programme.  
 
7j Young Philanthropy - Recommended Grant £71,750  
 
£71,750 over three years towards the cost of expanding Young Philanthropy as 
part of the ‘City Philanthropy a wealth of opportunity’ initiative, to be costed 
against the City Bridge Trust allocation for Strategic Initiatives 2014/15.  
 
7k Thames21 - Recommended Grant £340,000  
 
£340,000 over three years (£134,000; £102,000; £104,000) for the salaries and 
operational costs of a Development Programme, to increase and sustain 
London volunteers’ involvement in protecting the capital’s waterways.  
 

8. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS 
FOLLOWS:-  
 
8a Grants Recommended for Rejection  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which 
recommended that 10 grant applications in the Investing in Londoners 
programme be rejected for the reasons identified in the schedule attached to 
the report.  
 
Members queried the rejection of the application made by Mind in Kingston and 
agreed to defer the decision until the next meeting, pending the outcome of a 
discussion with the charity. This decision was later withdrawn during a 
discussion held in non-public session; Members agreed to reject the Mind 
application and requested that officers contact the charity and inform them of 
the date they could reapply (one year from the submission of their application).  
 
RESOLVED – That the grant applications detailed in the schedule attached to 
the report be rejected.  
 
8b Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which provided 
details of four applications which had been withdrawn and one which had 
lapsed.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



8c Grants Approved under Delegated Authority  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which advised 
Members of 5 expenditure items, totalling £31,900, which had been presented 
for approval under delegated authority to the Chief Grants Officer in 
consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman.  
 
Grants  

• Fairfield (Croydon) Limited - £4,000 to match CEP funding towards the 
wage costs of two apprentices for 1 year.  

• Friends R Us - £4,500 to cover the costs of an independent access audit 
of Beth Jacob House.  

• Enfield Mental Health Users Group - £17,000 for a third and final year’s 
support of the Elders’ Project, to fund a p/t (14hpw) Advocacy Worker 
plus related running costs, subject to the receipt of a satisfactory 
monitoring report for the current grant.  

 

Eco-audits  

• Real – 5 days (value = £2,000) to undertake an eco-audit.  

• Trust Thamesmead – 11 days (value = £4,400) to undertake an eco-
audit.  

 

8d Reports on Monitoring Visits  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer relative to two 
visits that had been undertaken. Members discussed the visits and the process 
for circulating details and dates for future visits.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received. 
 

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.  
 
Item No.   Exempt Paragraphs  
12 -14     3 
 
 
 

Page 9



12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 13 March 
2014 be approved as a correct record.  
 

13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There was one question. 
 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 3.02pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Philippa Sewell 
Tel. no.: 020 7332 1426 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk  
 

Page 10



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 15 May 2014 

Subject:  

Appointment to the Social Investment Board 

Public 

 

Report of: 

The Town Clerk 
For Decision 

 
Summary  

 
1. The purpose of this report is to consider the appointment to the Social 

Investment Board. The proposed Terms of Reference and composition of 
the Board are given below. 

2. Subject to approval by the Investment Committee at its meeting on 14th 
May 2014, the Terms of Reference will continue as present with the Board 
meeting up to six times a year. 

3. The composition of the Social Investment Board includes the Chairman of 
the City Bridge Trust Committee for the time being or his/her nominee. 
Deputy Ken Ayers was nominated to serve on the Board for 2013/14 in 
place of the Chairman.  

  

Recommendation(s): 

It is recommended that consideration be given to the appointment to the 
Social Investment Board.  

 
Social Investment Board 

 

Composition  

• Chairman to be determined by the Board* 

• The Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee for the time being 
or his/her nominee;  

• The Chairman of the Finance Committee for the time being or his/her 
nominee; 

• The Chairman of the City Bridge Trust Committee for the time being or 
his/her nominee; 

• The Chairman of the Financial Investment Board for the time being or 
his/her nominee;  

• One Member of the Financial Investment Board;  

• Two Members elected by the Court of Common Council, one of whom 
shall have fewer than five years’ service on the Court at the time of their 
appointment. 

All nominees must be Members of the Court of Common Council. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



Quorum  

The quorum consists of any 3 Members.  

 

Terms of Reference 

The terms of reference for the Social Investment Board shall be as 
follows:- 

a) to approve criteria for social investments and to authorise social 
 investments in accordance with such criteria 

b) to approve the appointment of and monitor the performance of 
 independent advisors tasked with undertaking due diligence of 
 investment proposals; and 

c) all of the above to be consistent with the strategic investment policies 
 determined by the Policy and Resources Committee and the 
 Investment Committee. 

There is provision within Standing Orders to enable the Chairman of the 
Social Investment Board to report on and speak to their activities and 
responsibilities in the Court of Common Council and to ensure that any 
decisions are taken without undue delay.   

 

*Note on the Chairmanship 

The Social Investment Board shall elect annually a Chairman and a 
Deputy Chairman from amongst all of its Members (including ex-officio 
Members who shall also have the power to vote in such elections) with the 
exception of any co-opted people.  

Page 12



Outstanding Items     
 

 

 

 
Item 

 
Action Officer responsible Progress by 

Outstanding Financial Conditions: CBT Committee – 10 April 2014 

Connaught Opera 
Grant subject to a satisfactory monitoring framework being agreed 
within the organisation.  

Jemma Grieve Combes 15th May 2014 

Enfield Mental 
Health Users Group 

Grant subject to the receipt of a satisfactory monitoring report for the 
current grant. 

Ciaran Rafferty  19th June 2014 

Outstanding Financial Conditions: CBT Committee –  9 January 2014 

Paddington 
Development Trust 

Grant subject to receipt of a satisfactory monitoring report for current 
grant. 

Jenny Field 31 March 2014 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 13



P
age 14

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust 15th May 2014 

Subject: Progress Report 

 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Information 

Summary 

This is a regular Progress Report by the Chief Grants Officer. 

Recommendations 

Members are asked to note the report. 

 
Main Report 

 
Mental Health Work 
 
1. The May Committee meeting falls in the middle of Mental Health Awareness 
 Week.  The Trust’s commitment to supporting work to improve Londoners’ 
 mental health remains an important strand of your ‘Investing in Londoners’ 
 grants programmes.  Mr Fraser and I went to visit your grantee, Mind in 
 Camden, to learn about the innovative work they are doing to support young 
 people who hear voices, see visions, or experience unusual perceptions. 
 
 
Media Work 
 
 Parklife London 
2. You may re-call that at your last meeting, officers reported that the media 

agency, Champollion, had competed work on the website, Parklife London, as 
part of your Growing Locailties initiative.  This is the interactive site that allows 
geo-location software to enable one to find green spaces in London, and 
allows people to post information about events and volunteering opportunities 
taking place at those spaces.   With information about some 2,300 green 
spaces included, the site was soft-launched just before Easter.  

 
3. As well as promoting the site using social media (principally through twitter 

and blogs), Champollion have placed tailored press releases with local press 
at the borough level.  So far, coverage includes the following outlets: 

  

Agenda Item 9

Page 15



 

Outlet Link 

Croydon 
Citizen 
Online 

http://thecroydoncitizen.com/cronxwire/parks-pocket-mobile-
map-londons-parks-green-spaces-comes-croydon/ 

Haringey 
Independe
nt Online 

http://www.haringeyindependent.co.uk/news/11166145.Find_a_p
ark_in_your_pocket_with_new_app/?ref=var_0 

Bexley 
Times 

http://edition.pagesuite-
professional.co.uk/launch.aspx?referral=other&refresh=wK0531
mJi2D0&PBID=abd4a8f0-fc75-4f30-a24c-1f7b6a4f2f88&skip 

Barking 
and 
Dagenha
m Times 

http://edition.pagesuite-
professional.co.uk/Launch.aspx?PBID=837deba7-ef67-4dba-
bdae-c5f1ed9391f9 

Barking 
and 
Dagenha
m Times 
online 

http://www.barkinganddagenhampost.co.uk/news/mobile_parks_
map_extended_to_include_barking_and_dagenham_1_3541709
?usurv=skip 

The Ilford 
Recorder 
online 

http://www.ilfordrecorder.co.uk/news/new_app_to_help_explore_
redbridge_green_spaces_1_3545762 

 
 An article appeared in the 1st May 2014 edition of the Evening Standard online 

http://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/online-map-of-londons-parks-now-
covers-the-whole-city-9310618.html. Another online article was featured on 
the Horticulture Week website on 2nd May 2014. 
http://www.hortweek.com/news/1291977/website-sets-park-trending-goal   
Both articles included a quote from the Chief Grants Officer.  

 
 
Partnership with Buttle UK 
 
4. You may re-call that you agreed to establish a hardship fund in partnership 

with Buttle UK to help families that have survived domestic violence re-build 
their lives.  The partnership was launched at a seminar at Mansion House on 
6th May 2014.  Following the issue of a joint press release from City Bridge 
Trust and Buttle UK, an article was featured in the Evening Standard on 30th 
April 2014.  
 

 
London Symphony Orchestra Grant 
 
5. At the last committee you approved a grant of £172,000 to the London 

Symphony Orchestra to support creative music making activity for adults with 
learning disabilities at LSO St Luke’s, the Barbican and in residential/day 
centres.  This sum included an uplifted evaluation sum and you requested the 
revised figures be clarified in this report. 

 

Page 16



6. The total figure to be spent on the evaluation of this grant will be £20,000 
(Year 1: £5,000;  year 2:  £7,000;  year 3: £8,000).  This will fund an external 
evaluator on a consultancy contract basis.  The evaluator will research the 
impact of the project;  act as a critical friend to the LSO project leads; 
participate in a learning conference at the end of year 2;  and write up and 
assist in the dissemination of a full report pulling together the learning over 3 
years.  Throughout the evaluation, appropriate links will be made with the 
research you are funding on improving provision of access to mainstream arts 
venues for people with learning disabilities.     

 
 
Sustainable City Awards 
 
7. The Sustainable City Awards were held at Mansion House on 27th March 

2014.  The Trust continued its collaboration with the Worshipful Company of 
Pattenmakers, running the category of Greening the Third Sector.  This 
rewards voluntary and community organisations that do not have the 
environment as their main focus but which have nevertheless made significant 
improvements in reducing their carbon footprint.  Mrs Mead and Mrs. 
Littlechild  represented the Trust on the judging panel, together with two of the 
Pattenmakers.   
 

8. This year’s winner was Poplar HARCA, an organisation that is currently in 
receipt of a grant under your Growing Localities programme, for its Green 
Programme which aims to draw together the various sustainability strands of 
all aspects of its work to create more coherent and sustainable outcomes.  

 
 
City Philanthropy – A Wealth of Opportunity 
 
9. City Philanthropy – A Wealth of Opportunity is working with City Wealth, a 

membership organisation for advisors of Ultra High Worth Individuals 
(£20m+), to promote philanthropy at its various networking events.  

 
10. On 8th April 2014, Dr Fred Mulder, an advisor to City Philanthropy and a major 
 philanthropist, spoke to their Tomorrow Club and on 29th April 2014 Dame 
 Stephanie Shirley spoke at the Women and Wealth event – both were a great 
 success. The first event resulted in several audience members registering to 
 attend The Funding Network philanthropy events for the first time and the 
 second was an inspiring and engaging occasion.  
 
11. City Philanthropy Director Cheryl Chapman will be following up with some 
 attendees to explore opportunities for philanthropy.  Both talks are on The City 
 Wealth website. 
  

Page 17



Working with Other Funders 
 
12. The Trust remains committed to working with other funders to achieve the 
 best outcomes for Londoners. This takes on different forms: participation in 
 and funding for  formal networks such as the Association of Charitable 
 Foundations; London Funders; collaborations such as the work with the 
 Buttle Trust on supporting  families fleeing domestic violence; and the more 
 informal sharing of  intelligence and good practice. 
 
13. An example of how learning is shared between trusts and foundations is your 
 Principal Grants Officer Ciaran Rafferty attending the launch of the Lloyds 
 Bank Foundation’s new grants programmes following its major strategic 
 review in 2013.  
 
14. Funds available to disperse throughout England and Wales are c.£22m per 

annum. The Foundation’s funding now falls into two distinct programmes: 
Invest – which provides longer term core or delivery costs for charities (with 
scope to fund an organisation up to £25,000 pa for up to 6 years); and Enable 
– which aims to help individual organisations become stronger and/or develop 
capacity, offering grants of up to a total value of £15,000 over two years. 
 

15. The rationale behind the strategic focus on helping small and medium sized 
charities is acknowledged by many in the trust and foundation world, as it is 
usually these organisations which are more susceptible to a challenging 
funding environment. The Foundation also declares a commitment to 
becoming more of a learning organisation and to sharing the knowledge 
gleaned from its relationships with grantees and the wider sector. Strategies 
which are not dissimilar to your own. 

  
 
 
Social Investment 
 
16. In the Trust’s business plan for 2014 -2015 the relationship between the 

Trust’s grant-making and social investment features as an objective, 
particularly where we could encourage more London charities to participate in 
the social investment market.   

 
17. At the last committee, a brief update was provided on your officers’ work to 

develop a ‘transition fund’, as part of your Investing in Londoners grants 
programmes, to support grant-funded organisations access social investment.  
At that time it was envisaged a full report would be brought to this Committee.  
Following a meeting of relevant officers last week, Transition Fund parameters 
were agreed.  It is now clear that considerably more detailed work is need 
before a report is ready for presentation to the Committee (particularly since 
the additional capacity to support the social investment will not come on-line 
until next month). The report will now be presented to your September 
Committee. 

 

Page 18



18. A good example of why this work is so important has occurred in the last 
month in relation to the organisation, Praxis.  Praxis is based in Bethnal Green 
and provides advice and support to new migrants in London.  Your most 
recent grant was to support the development of the Language Gym, a new IT 
and web based means of learning English.  The Language Gym has become 
a social enterprise with the potential of earning unrestricted income for the 
charity.  Also this month the Social Investment Board has approved an 
investment of £500,000 in a supported housing programme for destitute 
migrants which will involve work by Praxis. It is encouraging to see an 
example of one of your grantees starting to access the social investment 
market, and using repayable finance to expand its reach.  

 
19. The inter-relationship between grant-funding; social enterprise; and social 

investment is likely to become increasingly important for the organisations the 
Trust supports. The transition fund will be an excellent opportunity to progress 
this work. 

 
 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to note the report. 
 
 
 
David Farnsworth, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3713 
david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 29th April 2014              

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



  THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST  
 

Professional Development Events, Conferences and Seminars  
Attended 26th March to 1st May 2014 

 

Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
 

23.03.14 Queen’s Park 
Rangers in the 
Community Trust 

Visit Chief Grants Officer Loftus Road 
Stadium 

A visit to see the CBT funded work 
supporting the Extra Time project, providing 
activities, social time and health advice to 
older people. 

25.04.14 Midi Music 
Company 

Visit Chief Grants Officer Deptford A visit to learn about the CBT funded pilot 
supporting deaf young people to work with 
music. 

26.03.14 Institute of 
Voluntary Action 
Research (IVAR) 

Seminar/ 
training 

Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

City of London UK evaluation round table: learning event 
with other UK funders on grant programme 
evaluation 

27.03.14 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Seminar Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Kings Cross Two presentations from funders who have 
supported work to address the negative 
impact of loneliness and isolation on older 
people 

28.03.14 Corporation of 
London 

Training Julia Mirkin, Grants 
Officer 

Guildhall Disability Awareness Training, which 
covered the definition of disability and 
examples of how disabilities impact on 
peoples’ lives.  

01.04.14 Voluntary Action 
Islington 

Presentation Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

Islington Presentation to 40 Islington-based voluntary 
organisations on your new grants 
programmes and how to apply. 

08.04.14 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 
(ACF) 

Seminar Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

Kings Cross Violence against Women and Girls network: 
presentation of findings from the Boys to 
Men project which aimed to establish what 
can be done to reduce the number of young 
men who become perpetrators. 

P
age 21



02.04.14 Lloyds Bank 
Foundation 

Launch Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

St Luke’s 
Community 
Centre, EC1 

An event to launch Lloyds Bank 
Foundation’s new funding programmes – 
see Chief Grants Officer’s report. 

11.04.14 MIND in Camden Visit Stuart Fraser; 
Chief Grants Officer 

London NW1 A visit to hear progress on your grant 
supporting young people who hear voices, 
see visions or experience other unusual 
perceptions. 

11.04.14 Maytree  Open House 
event 

Julia Mirkin, Grants 
Officer 

Finsbury Park An Open House event for existing funders, 
providing an opportunity to meet staff and 
see the facility, which is often occupied. 

23.04.14 Comic Relief Meeting Julia Mirkin, Grants 
Officer 

Vauxhall A meeting with Laura Roling, UK 
Programme Manager for Mental Health, 
about developments to Comic Relief’s 
programme. 

24.04.14 Deafblind UK Monitoring Visit Deputy Chairman; 
Deputy Chief Grants 
Officer 

London N1 An opportunity to learn about the work CBT 
funds. 

28.04.14 Trust for London Seminar Deputy Chief Grants 
Officer 

London EC1 A seminar to hear the findings of Trust for 
London’s research into the disproportionate 
rate of unemployment amongst young black 
men. 

29.04.14 City Wealth Networking 
Event 

Cheryl Chapman, 
Director of City 
Philanthropy  

St Paul’s An inspiring networking event: “Women in 
Wealth”; at which the philanthropist Dame 
Stephanie Shirley spoke to more than 40 
women about her philanthropy. 

01.05.14 The Upper Room Project visit The Chairman and 
Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Hammersmith An opportunity to see some of the Upper 
Room’s work taking place, and to meet 
some of the homeless clients who benefit 
from this charity’s support. Your Trust funds 
a mental health programme. 

 

P
age 22



 
 
 
 

General Events and Receptions  
Attended 26th March to 1st May 2014 

 
 

 

Date Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
  

23.04.14 Chocolate Films Launch event Julia Mirkin, Grants 
Officer 

BAFTA, 
Piccadilly 

A launch event for 1000 Londoners, the 
CBT funded project to film and produce 
short documentaries about Londoners. 

29.04.14 CLIC Sargent Reception The Chairman Dorchester The Chairman attended a reception at the 
Dorchester given by CLIC Sargent to hear 
the testimony of three children who have 
overcome cancer. City Bridge Trust’s 
contribution towards a family support work 
was much appreciated. 

 

P
age 23



P
age 24

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust 15th May 2014 

Subject: Wembley National Stadium Trust - Update 

 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Information 

Summary 

This report brings members up to date with the work of the Wembley National 
Stadium Trust.  

Recommendation 

Members are asked to note the report. 

 
Main Report 

 
Introduction 

1. At the last meeting of your Committee Members requested an update on the 
work of the Wembley National Stadium Trust (WNST). 

  
2. WNST is an independent charitable trust, with its own board of trustees and 

grant-making policies, administered under contract by the City Bridge Trust.  
One of the Trust’s senior officers is seconded to WNST as its Chief Executive, 
with other members of the CBT staff team assisting with administrative duties.  
CBT charges WNST a fee on a full cost recovery basis for the service.  
Alderman Gordon Haines is one of WNST’s seven trustees. 

 
3. This is the first occasion on which CBT has undertaken work on this kind of 

arrangement but the venture has been mutually beneficial.  WNST benefitting 
from CBT’s renowned experience for high-quality grant-making, whilst CBT 
has been able to use systems piloted by WNST to develop its own working 
methods. 

 
4. More generally within the grant-making community, there has been real 

interest and commendation for the City Corporation and CBT using its skills 
and experience to contribute to the wider charitable good.  The work also 
helps to fulfil one of the City’s key objectives in supporting the development of 
quality activities across Greater London. 

 
Grant-making activities 
 

5. WNST receives an annual payment from Wembley National Stadium Ltd 
(WNSL) equivalent to 1% of the stadium’s turnover.  This equates to around 
£1m per annum and is in recognition of the lottery contribution of £120m 
provided by Sport England towards the construction of the new stadium.  The 

Agenda Item 10

Page 25



payment is covered by a legal agreement between WNST and WNSL which 
lasts for fifty years. 

 
6. WNST’s objectives concern the promotion of community sport and assisting 

those who through age, disability, poverty or other reason require help to 
participate.  There is an expectation within the grants programmes that there 
will be a sizeable contribution towards football, but all sports are covered in 
principle. 

 
7. The £1m income is split into three equal shares: 
 
 Community sport in LB Brent  
8. This supports grassroots sports activities in the stadium’s home borough.  

Each year there are two grants ‘rounds’, both offering small “community 
grants” of up to £2,500 for more local groups and larger “strategic grants” of 
up to £25,000 for more well-established organisations.  Grants can be for 
either capital or revenue. 

 
9. Since the first round of grants in January 2013, WNST has awarded 81 grants 

in the borough (51 community and 30 strategic awards) worth in excess of 
£600,000.  These grants, especially the smaller awards, are received with 
great enthusiasm and make a real and quantifiable difference to the service 
that the groups can provide.  Funds have been used for a wide range of 
purposes including: 

• Hall or pitch hire costs 

• Referees expenses 

• Volunteer, coaching and training costs 

• Purchase of new sailing craft, cricket nets or football equipment 

• Premises re-wiring and re-roofing 
 
10. The range of sports covered includes not just football, cricket, tennis and 

rugby but also table tennis, volleyball, basketball, climbing, netball and many 
more.  The aim is to ensure that sport really is for all.  An example grants 
round list is at Annex A. 

 
 London-wide disability sport  
11. WNST is funding 11 high-profile projects working to improve the opportunities 

available to disabled Londoners to take part in and compete in sport.  The 
projects chosen for inclusion in the programme were selected for their 
potential to take an aspect of disability sport onto a new level or into a new 
arena, to learn lessons and then to disseminate these widely.  A full list of the 
projects is at Annex B.  A good example of the work is Panathlon, which offers 
sports activities for severely or multiply disabled young people.  Previously 
they had only worked in secondary school environments.  WNST funding has 
enabled them to adapt the sessions for primary school children, which is now 
being rolled out at locations across the country. 

 
12. WNST’s signature project on this programme is partnering with the Football 

Association to deliver the Greater London Disability Football Scheme.  This is 
run through the community schemes associated with each of the 15 

Page 26



professional football clubs in the capital.  These schemes have different 
specialisms in delivering football sessions for young people with for example a 
visual impairment, cerebral palsy, learning difficulties or autism.  A recent 
session of Powerchair football run by Crystal Palace in the Community, 
funded by the Trust, was featured in an article on Sky Sports News. 

 
 England-wide project  
13. The WNST trustees also recognise that Wembley is the English national 

football stadium and that, in due course, its grant-making needs to reflect this.  
However, to ensure a sufficiently sizeable pot is available to ensure a 
meaningful programme is feasible, money is being set aside annually, to 
accrue a fund of around £1m.  This will be achieved by late 2015.  Work will 
start this summer to scope the nature of what this programme might contain. 

 
Partnership working 

 
14. With the limited management and administrative resources available, it is vital 

that WNST works actively in partnership with outside bodies to achieve its 
objectives.  The valuable working relationship with City Bridge Trust and the 
City Corporation is the clearest manifestation of this but there are many more. 

 
15. Locally in LB Brent, WNST works closely with the council for voluntary 

service, which has been very helpful in supporting potential applicants to 
complete fundable applications; whilst the council’s Sports Development 
Team promotes WNST funding widely across the borough and has 
encouraged many good applications. 

 
16. On the London-wide programme, WNST has partnered with Interactive (itself 

a recipient of City Bridge Trust funding) to ensure that all of the work being 
funded is delivered to the highest specification and meets the needs of the 
disabled participants.  All of the organisations funded have received 
Interactive’s quality kitemark. 

 
Reputation 

 
17. The work undertaken by WNST has quickly built up a strong reputation within 

its areas of interest.  This is reflected in feedback from a wide range of people 
and from the contacts seeking the Trust’s advice.  For example, the Chief 
Executive Officer recently met with the All England Lawn Tennis Club at 
Wimbledon to help them develop a more formal community programme.  
Many of WNST’s more significant beneficiaries are also aware of the work 
undertaken by City Bridge Trust (some have been funded by you) and 
appreciate the partnership between the two organisations. 

 
18. WNST also maintains excellent working relationships with the management at 

Wembley Stadium.  They recognise the real value of supporting a wide array 
of local groups, many of whom boast of being able to see the stadium’s arch 
from their pitch or venue!  Many funded organisations also proudly display the 
Trust’s logo, which incorporates the Wembley emblem, on their kit and 
equipment.   

Page 27



For the future 
 

19. The partnership between WNST and CBT represents a good collaborative 
model for other trusts and foundations to consider. It is cost-effective and an 
excellent opportunity for CBT to share its grant-making expertise and 
systems; and for some CBT staff to further develop their skills through 
supporting the WNST work. 

 
20. The current CBT contract for the management and administration of WNST is 

for three years and expires in March 2015. A meeting has been scheduled in 
May between your Chief Grants Officer and the WNST Chief Executive, to 
discuss future arrangements. The outcome of the meeting will be reported to 
you at your next Committee meeting with a recommendation as to your future 
engagement. 

 
 

Recommendation 

Members are asked to note this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
Stewart Goshawk,  
Chief Executive Officer, WNST 
020 7332 1055 
stewart@wnst.org.uk 
stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
Report written: 29th April 2014        
  

Page 28



Grants Approved in January 2014      Annex A 
 

Reference Organisation  Purpose of Grant 

COMMUNITY GRANTS  

12032 AC Carrera £2,500 towards the costs of pitch 
hire, new kit / equipment and other 
costs. 

12031 Brent Storm Basketball Club £1,800 towards the cost of venue 
hire. 

12095 Capital City Partnership £2,500 towards the costs of an Irish 
dance schools programme 

12089 Coles Green Tennis Club £1,700 towards the costs of mini-
tennis, support for the junior squad 
and other club equipment. 

12075 First Impressions Performing 
Arts 

£2,000 towards the costs of street 
dance classes - costumes, tutors 
and other running costs. 

12064 Garryowen GFC £1,700 towards the costs of 
equipment, pitch hire and running 
costs. 

12044 Iraqi Centre for Integration & 
Cohesion 

£1,500 as a final contribution 
towards the costs of yoga classes. 

12052 Kinja Football Club £2,500 towards the costs of 
coaches, pitch hire and equipment. 

12049 Middlesex County Football 
Association 

£2,400 towards the pitch hire, 
coaching and other costs of social 
football sessions at Vale Farm. 

12091 Somali International Youth 
Development 

£2,500 towards the costs of a 
football tournament. 

12081 Special Olympics Wembley £1,750 towards the costs of a 
football coaching scheme for people 
with learning difficulties. 

12063 St Andrew's Youth Football 
Club 

£2,000 towards the costs of pitch 
hire, new kit and equipment. 

12076 St Mark's Church, Kensal Rise £2,500 towards the coaching costs 
and equipment for a pilates course 
for older people and new mums. 

12070 St Mary Magdalen's Catholic 
Junior School 

£2,500 towards the coaching and 
equipment costs of a multi-sports 
activity programme for 
underachieving boys. 

12054 Tamil Association of Brent £1,900 towards the costs of netball 
venue hire and coaching. 

12080 Wembley Crime Prevention 
Panel 

£2,440 towards the costs of a kick-
boxing tutor. 

12037 Wembley Sailing Club £2,500 towards the cost of one Laser 
Pico boat. 

  

Page 29



Reference Organisation  Purpose of Grant 
 

12074 Willesden (Constantine) 
Football Club 

£1,380 towards the costs of a set of 
Park Goalposts. 

12067 Young's Football Coaching 
School 

£1,250 towards the costs of venue 
hire. 

STRATEGIC GRANTS 

12060 ABC Coaching £12,500 towards the costs of football 
coaching projects at the Capital City 
Academy and Vale Farm. 

12061 Brent Schools Football 
Association 

£8,000 towards the costs of new kit, 
tracksuits, footballs and goals 
(£6,300 in total), with a contribution 
towards running costs (£1,700). 

12078 Harp Young Sailors £12,000 towards the purchase of 
3no Feva craft, together with 
associated equipment. 

12079 Swamibapa Cricket Club £15,000 towards the costs of a 
cricket net installation at the new 
Shree Muktajeevan Sports 
Academy. 

12086 Wembley & Sudbury Tennis, 
Squash & Social Club 

£19,200 towards the costs of re-
roofing the squash courts and re-
wiring the club house. 

12077 Wembley FC LTD £14,000 towards the costs of a 
World Cup Football Festival. 

12072 Wembley Sports Association £25,000 towards the costs of: 
- New changing rooms. 
- Roof repairs to the clubhouse. 
- Remedial works to the cricket nets. 

TOTAL GRANTS APPROVED ON 14th January 2014: £145,020 

 
 
  

Page 30



London-wide Grants Approved in June 2013     Annex B 
 

Reference Organisation Purpose of Grant 

LONDON-WIDE DISABILITY SPORTS GRANTS 
11826 Access Sport A grant of £30,000 over two years (2 x 

£15,000) towards the costs of 'Ignite'. 
 

11822 Cricket for Change A grant of £98,000 over three years 
(£49,000; £24,500; £24,500) towards the 
costs of 'Hit the Top' heroes. 
 

11820 England Athletics Ltd A grant of £35,000 to provide funding for 
equipment and other costs to enable the 
delivery of athletics activities for disabled 
Londoners. 
 

11819 London United A grant of £225,000 over three years (3 x 
£75,000) for a wide-ranging programme of 
disability football based around the 15 
community schemes of London's 
professional football clubs.   
 

11811 London Playing Fields 
Foundation 

A grant of £36,900 over three years 
(£11,700; £12,300; £12,900) towards the 
expansion of 'Coping through Football' to 
meet the needs of younger clients. 
  

11831 London Youth A grant of £86,400 over two years (2 x 
£43,200) to increase the capacity of youth 
clubs to deliver sport for disabled young 
Londoners. 
 

11839 Lord’s Taverners A grant of £80,000 over three years 
(£35,000; £30,000; £15,000) towards the 
costs of a London disability cricket 
programme. 
 

11812 Panathlon Foundation A grant of £20,000 to run Panathlon 
sessions for primary school age children in 
London. 
 

11807 Saracens Sport Foundation A grant of £64,000 (£33,000; £31,000) 
towards the costs of multi-sport 
opportunities for people with autism. 
 

11830 South London Special League A grant of £20,700 over three years (3 x 
£6,900) towards the costs of sports leagues 
for disabled adults. 
 

11810 Wheelpower – British 
Wheelchair Sport 

A grant of £102,600 over three years 
(£29,600; £36,200; £36,800) towards the 
costs of wheelchair sports activities for 
children of primary school age. 

TOTAL LONDON- WIDE GRANTS APPROVED ON 25 JUNE 2013: £798,600 

 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

City Bridge Trust 15th May 2014 

Subject:  

Grant Applications Statistical Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For decision 

 

 
Summary 

This paper summarises applications received and action taken under your 
grants programmes in 2014/15.  34 applications will be dealt with at today’s 
meeting, including 13 grant recommendations and 6 grants to be noted as 
approved by delegated authority for a total recommended sum of £1,292,750.  
This leaves £12,313,562 remaining on your grants budget for 2014/15.  

Recommendations  

Members are asked to: 

• Note the report 

• Consider the grant recommendations in the subsequent annexes 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 

1.1 This paper summarises action taken in 2014/15 on grant applications received 
under your Working with Londoners and Investing in Londoners grants 
programmes.  It charts overall spend against your current year grants budget, 
grants made by programme outcomes, action taken on applications received 
and a summary of today’s recommendations.  City Bridge Trust committee 
also receives an annual statistical report which provides more details of the 
trends seen over the year.  Your last annual statistical report was received in 
November 2013.   
 

1.2 City Bridge Trust grants are awarded in line with your policy guidance which 
includes the priorities and exclusions that were ratified for the Trust by the 
Court of Common Council, in July 2013.  
 

Grants budget 2014/15 
 
2.1 34 applications will be dealt with at today’s meeting of which 13 are 

recommended for a grant today and 6 are to be noted as approved by 
delegated authority, for a total recommended sum of £1,292,750.  The 
implications of today’s recommendations are shown in Table 1 against the 
original grants budget for 2014/15.   

 
2.2 If you agree the applications recommended for a grant today this will leave 

£12,313,562 unspent on your grants budget for 2014/5.  As instructed at your 

Page 37



April meeting, officers are currently seeking approval for the carry forward into 
2014/15 of the £3,533,480 remaining from your 2013/14 grants budget. 
 
Table 1: Overall spend against 2014/15 budget 
 

  Grants budget Grants spend 

Original Grants Budget £14,950,000   

Write-Backs & Revocations £28,722   

Total Budget Available £14,978,722   

   

Previous committee 
meetings     

April 2014   £1,372,410 

      

Sub-total approved spend   £1,372,410 

Remaining budget £13,606,312   

   

Today's recommendations     

      

May 2014     

Working with Londoners   £113,500 

Investing in Londoners   £1,179,250 

Total May 2014   £1,292,750 

Total annual spend   £2,665,160 

Remaining budget £12,313,562   

 
2.3 It should also be noted that an additional £1m was allocated to be spent via 

this Committee in 2014/15 for an initiative called ‘the Employability Initiative’ 
which you approved at your meeting in November 2012.  These figures are 
not included in the table above. 

 
Grants made by outcome area this financial year 

3.1 This month the final pending application under your old Working with 
Londoners programmes has been recommended for a grant.  Given that there 
were only 2 outstanding Working with Londoners applications for decision this 
financial year, these have not been included in the outcome area analysis 
below.  A full summary of the programme will, however, be included in your 
annual statistical report.  Table 2 shows the breakdown of grants awarded this 
financial year by outcome area under your Investing in Londoners grant 
programmes.  Charts 1 and 2 show the proportion of grants awarded, 
including today’s recommendations by outcomes area.  Chart 1 is based on 
the number of grants awarded and Chart 2 is based on the value of grants 
awarded. 

 
 
 

Page 38



Table 2: Grant approvals by outcome area (Investing in Londoners) 
 

 Number of grants Value of grants 

Fund/Program 
Year to 

date Today Total 
Year to 

date Today Total 

English for Speakers 
of Other Languages 0 1 1 £0 £63,500 £63,500 

Improving Londoner's 
mental health 1 1 2 £38,000 £120,000 £158,000 

Improving London's 
environment 1 0 1 £49,050 £0 £49,050 

Making London more 
inclusive 2 3 5 £250,750 £195,000 £445,750 

Access audit 1 2 3 £4,500 £6,800 £11,300 

Making London safer 0 1 1 £0 £60,000 £60,000 

Older Londoners 2 1 3 £50,660 £2,850 £53,510 

Reducing poverty 1 1 2 £150,000 £165,000 £315,000 

Resettlement and 
rehabilitation of 
offenders 1 2 3 £120,400 £247,700 £368,100 

Strengthening 
London's voluntary 
sector 1 2 3 £146,900 £241,900 £388,800 

Arts apprenticeships 1 0 1 £4,000 £0 £4,000 

Partnership 
programmes - 
hardship funds 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

London youth quality 
mark 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Eco-audits 2 2 4 £6,400 £4,000 £10,400 

Strategic initiatives 2 2 4 £411,750 £72,500 £484,250 

Exceptional grants 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Grand total 15 18 33 £1,232,410 £1,179,250 £2,411,660 

 

Page 39



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

3%

6%

3%

15%

9%

3%

9%

6%

9%

9%

3%

0%

0%

12%

12%

0%

0 1 2 3 4 5 6

English for Speakers of Other Languages

Improving Londoner's mental health

Improving London's environment

Making London more inclusive

Making London more inclusive - access audit

Making London safer

Older Londoners

Reducing poverty

Resettlement and rehabilitation of offenders

Strengthening London's voluntary sector

Arts apprenticeships

Partnership programmes - hardship funds

London youth quality mark

Eco-audits

Strategic initiatives

Exceptional grants

Chart 1: % grants awarded by outcome area this 

financial year (by number of grants)

Year to date

Today's meeting

3%

7%

2%

18%

0%

2%

2%

13%

15%

16%

0%

0%

0%

0%

20%

0%

£0 £150,000 £300,000 £450,000 £600,000

English for Speakers of Other Languages

Improving Londoner's mental health

Improving London's environment

Making London more inclusive

Making London more inclusive - access audit

Making London safer

Older Londoners

Reducing poverty

Resettlement and rehabilitation of offenders

Strengthening London's voluntary sector

Arts apprenticeships

Partnership programmes - hardship funds

London youth quality mark

Eco-audits

Strategic intiatives

Exceptional grants

Chart 2: %  grants awarded by outcome area this 

financial year

Year to date

Today's meeting

Page 40



3.2 A large proportion of grants, by number and value, have been made under 
Making London More Inclusive.  This may reflect the wide range of this 
programme as there are several different priorities under which organisations 
can apply. It is also a well-established City Bridge Trust programme, similar to 
Older Londoners, Strengthening London’s Voluntary Sector and Resettlement 
and Rehabilitation of Offenders which have also seen relatively high numbers 
of grants.  It is however notable that the value of grants made under Older 
Londoners is lower: these tend to be small grants for small local projects.  It is 
interesting to see that there is a comparatively high number and value of 
grants approved under Reducing Poverty, one of your newer programmes, 
which seems to have been well received.   The proportion of grants awarded 
as strategic initiatives is comparatively high.  This reflects the recent focus on 
more strategic work that has been detailed in previous Chief Grants Officer 
reports.  Given the early point in the financial year however, any analysis of 
trends should be treated with caution. 

 
Applications received since the launch of Investing in Londoners  
 
4.1 Chart 3 shows the number of applications received by month and the action 

taken (excluding strategic initiatives and partnership programmes) since the 
launch of Investing in Londoners in September 2013. Please note that 
applications for decision at today’s meeting are still classified as ‘pending’.  
Application numbers are growing steadily, with a peak of 45 applications 
received in February.  This is similar to the previous year, possibly due to 
organisations aiming to submit applications before the start of their new 
financial year. 

 

 
 

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May

2013 2014

Grand Total 2 13 23 30 34 44 33 30 1

Pending 0 0 3 15 17 39 33 30 1

Declined 1 9 10 10 9 1 0 0 0

Approved 1 4 10 5 8 4 0 0 0

2

13

23

30
34

44

33
30

1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Chart 3: Applications received by month and action 

taken since Investing in Londoners launch in 

September 2013

Pending

Declined

Approved

Page 41



4.3 Chart 4 summarises the number of applications received by outcome area 
since Investing in Londoners was launched in September 2013 (excluding 
strategic initiatives and partnership programmes).   Please note that 
applications for decision at today’s meeting are still classified as ‘pending’.  In 
line with the analysis of grants awarded, this shows that there are high 
numbers of applications under Strengthening London’s Voluntary Sector, 
Older Londoners and Making London More Inclusive.  However it is positive to 
see that more ‘pending’ applications are coming through in areas where fewer 
grants have been awarded such as Improving Londoner’s Mental Health and 
Making London Safer.  Higher numbers of rejections can be observed under 
Older Londoners and Making London More Inclusive – however this is simply 
a reflection of the higher numbers of applications for these programmes and 
does not necessarily reflect a higher rejection rate. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5

10

10

23

15

36

7

12

31

23

12

26

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Arts Apprenticeships

Eco Audits

English for Speakers of Other Languages

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

Improving London's Environment

Making London More Inclusive

Community buildings - Access Audit

Making London Safer

Older Londoners

Reducing Poverty

Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders

Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector

Chart 4: Investing in Londoners applications 

received by outcome area and action taken since 

launch in Sept 2013

Approved

Declined

Pending

Page 42



Today’s applications 
 

5.1 34 applications will be dealt with at today’s meeting.  Table 3 notes the type of 
action recommended. Full details of each of these applications are shown in 
separate sections later on in your papers. 
 

Table 3: Action to be taken on applications today 
 

Action to be taken  Number 
Working with 
Londoners 

Investing in 
Londoners 

Applications recommended for grant 13 1 12 

Funding approved by delegated 
authority <£5k (to note)  5 0 5 

Funding approved by delegated 
authority <£25k (to note)  0 0 1 

Applications recommended for rejection 14 0 14 

Withdrawn applications (to note) 1 0 1 

Applications lapsed (to note) 0 0 0 

        

Total applications 34 1 33 

 
Jemma Grieve Combes 
Grants Officer 
 
T: 020 7332 3174  
E: jemma.grievecombes@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 The City Bridge Trust 

 Working with Londoners 
 Summary of Grant Recommendations 
 

 

  Ref Requested Recommended 

  No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 

 Strengthening the Third Sector 

a) 11932 Resource for London £113,500 £113,500 

 

 

 

Total Strengthening the Third Sector £113,500 £113,500 

 Grand Total £113,500 £113,500 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12a

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



The City Bridge Trust 
Investing in Londoners 

Summary of Grant Recommendations 
 

 Annex Ref Requested Recommended 

 No. No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 English for Speakers of Other Languages 

 b) 12139 The New Cross Gate £64,460 £63,500 

 Trust 

 

Total English for Speakers of Other Languages £63,500 

 Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

 c) 12119 Room to Heal £119,889 £120,000 

 

Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health  £120,000 

 Making London More Inclusive 

 d) 12144 Contemporary Dance £55,637 £55,000 

 Trust 

 e) 12097 Disablement £90,000 £90,000 

 Association Hillingdon 

 (DASH) 

 f) 12211 Greenwich+Docklands £85,000 £50,000 

 Festivals 

 

Total Making London More Inclusive £195,000 

 Making London Safer 

 g) 12125 Parents and Abducted £60,000 £60,000 
 Children Together 

 (PACT) 

 

Total Making London Safer £60,000 

 Reducing Poverty 

 h) 12130 FareShare £165,000 £165,000 

 

Total Reducing Poverty  £165,000 

Agenda Item 13

Page 61



 Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders 

 i) 12148 Prison Advice and Care £147,023 £142,000 

 Trust 

 j) 12106 WWV £133,332 £105,700 

 

Total Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders  £247,700 

 

 Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector 

 k) 12164 Local Accountancy £103,000 £100,800 

 Project 

 l) 12131 Volunteer Centre £132,411 £141,100 

 Hounslow 

 

Total Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector £241,900 

 

Grand Totals £1,242,549 £1,093,100 

Page 62



Agenda Item 13a

Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Agenda Item 13b

Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Agenda Item 13c

Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Agenda Item 13d

Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Agenda Item 13e

Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13f

Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Agenda Item 13g

Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13h

Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13i

Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13j

Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13k

Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

City Bridge Trust 

 

 

10/05/2014 

Subject:  

Grant applications recommended for rejection 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Decision 

Summary 

This report and the accompanying schedule outlines a total of 14 grant 
applications that, for the reason(s) identified, are recommended for 
rejection. 

 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to reject the grant applications detailed in the 
accompanying schedule. 
 

 
Main Report 

 
1. There are a total of 14 applications recommended for rejection at 

this meeting. They are listed within categories in the accompanying 
schedule. In each case the “purpose” that is used to describe the 
application is that provided by the applicant organisation. All the 
recommendations are based on criteria set out in your Policy 
Guidance.  
 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in the 
Members’ Reading Room. If any Committee Member wishes to 
query any of the recommendations, this can either be done at the 
meeting, in which case the decision may be deferred while full 
details are provided to the Member concerned, or by contacting the 
Trust office in advance of the meeting so that an explanation can be 
provided prior to or at the meeting.  

 

 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 14a

Page 193



Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



English for Speakers of Other Languages

!""#$

%&'()&*+,*-./0/12
3)14/51

62&*%'7()'(&*8'90+.:*/79+.;+.'0&1
'*)7/<)&*9+5=/7'0/+7*+,*,+.5'4
>?@%*4&'.7/7(A*B.'5'A*5)1/9A*'7B
9+55)7/0:C='1&B*4&'.7/7(
+;;+.0)7/0/&1*02'0*9+5;4&5&70
&'92*+02&.*'7B*.&/7,+.9&
9+70&D0)'4*4&'.7/7(E

F7*+G&.4:*'5=/0/+)1*'7B*&D;&71/G&
>?@%*;.+H&90E*62&*+.('7/1'0/+7*2'1*'
2/10+.:*+,*4'0&*.&0).71*0+*02&*I2'./0:
I+55/11/+7*J2/410*'*(.'70*'1*.&<)&10&B
/1*4/K&4:*0+*&D9&&B*L#M*+,*02&
+.('7/1'0/+7N1*0+0'4*/79+5&*/7*"#!OE

P!Q#A!R! IS

S&B=./B(&

Total English for Speakers of Other Languages (1 item) £170,181

Improving London's Environment

!"!LL

?'(&*I+55)7/0:
>70&.;./1&

T&*J'70*0+*.)7*+)0B++.*4&'.7/7(
/7/0/'0/G&1*'7B*'90/G/0/&1*,+.
92/4B.&7*/7*%&J/12'5A*0+*/5;.+G&
02&/.*)7B&.10'7B/7(*+,*7'0).&A*02&
&7G/.+75&70*'7B*=/+B/G&.1/0:E

62/1*;.+;+1'4*/1*7+0*,+9)1&B*10.+7(4:
&7+)(2*+7*&7G/.+75&70'4*&B)9'0/+7*/7
+.B&.*0+*5&&0*:+).*;./+./0/&1*'7B*,'/41*0+
.&'11).&*:+).*+,,/9&.*02'0*02&.&*J/44*=&
'7*';;.+;./'0&*4&G&4*+,*&D;&.0/1&
=.+)(20*0+*02&*J+.KE

PQ$A#U" VW3

%&J/12'5

Total Improving London's Environment (1 item) £76,032

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

9:;$<+=$!"2.33"*4"4$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$>+*2$'"),.*,?$=)*4,2)1"
;@"$9+-A$:'+4("$;'0,-$9.33+--""$B$CD$E)A$FGCH

I033)'A$.#$!"2.33"*4)-+.*,$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$B$<*J",-+*($+*$=.*4.*"',

P
age 195



Improving Londoners' Mental Health

!"!Q#

-&/1*-.)92'*3+02&.
'7B*-'=:*X+5&

6+*;.+G/B&*&'.4:*/70&.G&70/+7*'7B
9'.&*0+*G)47&.'=4&*J+5&7*'0*./1K
+,*B&G&4+;/7(*;+10*7'0'4
B&;.&11/+7*YZW[\*J/02/7*02&*@V
9+55)7/0:*/7*W+.02*%+7B+7E

F0*02&*0/5&*+,*'11&115&70*YF;./4*"#!O\
02&*+.('7/1'0/+7N1*.&0).71*0+*02&*I2'./0:
I+55/11/+7*J&.&*+G&.B)&A*J2/410*02&:
J&.&*'41+*,/4&B*4'0&*,+.*02&*;.&G/+)1
:&'.A*1)((&10/7(*;++.*'B5/7/10.'0/+7*]
(+G&.7'79&E

PR$A$$! IS

X'9K7&:

!"!^"

[.)(*'7B*F49+2+4
?&.G/9&*,+.*%+7B+7

?'4'.:*9+101*,+.*+7&*J+.K&.*,+.*0J+
:&'.1*0+*;.+G/B&*1);;+.0A*'BG/9&
'7B*0.&'05&70*0+*;&+;4&*,.+5
9&70.'4*'7B*&'10&.7*&).+;&'7
9+55)7/0&1*4/G/7(*/7*%+7B+7E

62&*';;4/9'0/+7*B+&1*7+0*5'K&
1),,/9/&704:*94&'.*2+J*02&*;.+;+1&B
1&.G/9&1*,/0*J/02*02&*6.)10N1*;./+./0/&1
)7B&.*02&*5&70'4*2&'402*;.+(.'55&E
8.&&*.&1&.G&1*2&4B*'.&*9+71/B&.'=4:
2/(2&.*02'7*02&*;+4/9:*4&G&4E

PQQAOOL 6T

W&J2'5

!"!O#

V)4/'7*I'5;=&44
8+)7B'0/+7

T&*'.&*1&&K/7(*10',,/7(*,+.*'
0J+C:&'.*;.+H&90*0+*B&G&4+;*'7B
&10'=4/12*'*1;&9/'4/10*5&70+./7(
;.+H&90*/7*02.&&*%+7B+7*-+.+)(21
Y>7,/&4BA*T'402'5*8+.&10*'7B
X'./7(&:\E

_79+5;4&0&*';;4/9'0/+7*'7B*J2&.&*02&
+.('7/1'0/+7*2'1*7+0*1);;4/&B*02&
/7,+.5'0/+7*1)=1&<)&704:*.&<)&10&BE

P$OA$^# IS

>7,/&4B

Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health (3 items) £228,796

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 196



Making London More Inclusive

!"!R$

I'5B&7*3)1/9
6.)10

6+*1);;+.0*'7*'77)'4*02.&&*B':
`3)1/9*/1*?;&9/'4`*8'/.*'0*02&
S+)7B2+)1&*9&4&=.'0/7(*5)1/9*=:
'7B*,+.*B/1'=4&B*:+)7(*;&+;4&
,.+5*R*%+7B+7*=+.+)(21E

F;;4/9'0/+7*/1*,+.*=).1'.:*,)7B1*'7B
0+J'.B1*02&*9+101*+,*'*12+.0C0&.5
,&10/G'4A*7&/02&.*+,*J2/92*:+)*1);;+.0E

PLLA### IS

I'5B&7

!"!^U

W'0/+7'4*[&',
I2/4B.&7N1*?+9/&0:

?);;+.0/7(*B&',*92/4B.&7*'7B
:+)7(*;&+;4&*/7*%+7B+7*0+*=&
5+.&*/794)B&B*/7*02&*'90/G/0/&1*'7B
1&.G/9&1*+,,&.&B*=:*.&4/(/+)1
+.('7/1'0/+71*/7*02&/.*9+55)7/0/&1E

62&*;.+;+1'4*B+&1*7+0*5&&0*:+).
1;&9/,/9*;./+./0/&1*+.*/70&7B&B*+)09+5&1E
F0*02&*&7B*+,*3'.92*"#!O*02&
+.('7/1'0/+7*/1*&10/5'0&B*0+*2+4B*,.&&
.&1&.G&1*+,*P!!EL5A*,'.*/7*&D9&11*+,*/01
;+4/9:*0+*2+4B*'7*);;&.*4/5/0*+,*P^E$5E

P!#QAQR" IS

_14/7(0+7

!"!##

6&BB/7(0+7*S)(=:
8++0='44*I4)=
Y6S8I\

6+*;.+G/B&*/5;.+G&B*'99&11*,+.
;&+;4&*J/02*1;&9/'4*7&&B1*'7B
B/1'=/4/0/&1*'0*+).*7&J*94)=2+)1&*/7
-)12&:*Z'.K

62&*';;4/9'70*2'1*=&&7*)7'=4&*0+
;.+G/B&*'7*/7B&;&7B&70*'99&11*.&;+.0
J2/92*/1*'*.&<)/.&5&70*+,*:+).*,)7B/7(E

P!#AUO! Va3

S/925+7B

Total Making London More Inclusive (3 items) £173,123

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 197



Making London Safer

!"!OU

b/.'7*Z.+H&90

`?).G/G+.1"%&'B&.1`*J/44*&7'=4&
:+)7(*-F3>S*;&+;4&*c'0*./1K*+,d
B+5&10/9*G/+4&79&*0+*=&*1',&A
B/G&.0*,.+5*9./5/7'4/0:A*'99&11
1);;+.0*]*B&G&4+;5&70*'7B
=&9+5&*;&&.*4&'B&.1E

62/1*';;4/9'0/+7*/1*/71),,/9/&704:*,+9)1&B
'7B*4'9K1*9+2&1/+7*=&0J&&7*7)5&.+)1
;.+;+1&B*'90/G/0/&1E*62&.&*/1
/79+71/10&79:*'.+)7B*2+J*B/,,&.&70
:+)7(*;&+;4&*J+)4B*=&*1);;+.0&B*'7B
5+7/0+.&BE*62&1&*,'90+.1*.'/1&*9+79&.71
'1*0+*2+J*02&*;.+;+1&B*J+.K*J/02
G)47&.'=4&*:+)7(*;&+;4&*J+)4B*=&
5'7'(&B*0+*02&*10'7B'.B1*7&&B&BE

P!U$AOOL VeI

T'402'5
8+.&10

Total Making London Safer (1 item) £136,445

Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders

!"!"$

?0'.0);+74/7&*%0B

62&*,)7B/7(*J+)4B*9+70./=)0&*0+
?0'.0);N1*7&J*;.+(.'55&*0+
&DC+,,&7B&.1A*=+02*5&7*'7B
J+5&7A*4/G/7(*/7*%+7B+7*J/02
1;&9/,/9*,+9)1*+7*N2'7B1C+7N
&D;&./&79&E

F*G&.:*;++.4:*;.&1&70&B*';;4/9'0/+7
J2/92*,'/41*0+*;.&1&70*1;&9/,/9
/7,+.5'0/+7*+7*02&*/5;'90*+,*02&/.
;.&G/+)1*J+.KE*f+).*+,,/9&.*2'1*0./&B*0+
&4/9/0*5+.&*/7,+.5'0/+7*+7*4/K&4:
+)09+5&1*=)0*02/1*2'1*=&&7*G'()&E

PQ#A### Va3

T&105/710&.

Total Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders (1 item) £70,000

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 198



Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector

!"!R^

-.'B,/&4B*I4)=*/7
Z&9K2'5

0+*2&4;*/7*;':/7(*02&*9+101*+,
&5;4+:/7(*02&*10',,*J2+*'.&
&11&70/'4*,+.*B&4/G&./7(*02&*+=H&901
A;).;+1&1*'/51*'7B*'5=/0/+71*+,
02&*I4)=

F;;4/9'0/+7*1&&K1*,)7B1*,+.*(&7&.'4
:+)02*J+.K*'90/G/0/&1A*J2/92*,'441
+)01/B&*:+).*9./0&./'E

P^A### IS

?+)02J'.K

!""#^

S&B=./B(&*I2/4B.&7
g*f+)7(*Z&+;4&N1
W&0J+.K*YSIfZW\

>7'=4&5&70*+,*1&.G/9&*;.+G/B&.1
1);;+.0/7(*92/4B.&7*g*:+)7(
;&+;4&*0+*=)/4B*9';'9/0:A
9+44'=+.'0&A*.&;.&1&70*02&5*'7B
B&G&4+;*/5;.+G&BA*7&&B1*4&B
1&.G/9&1*J/02/7*'*4+9'4*10.'0&(:E

62/1*15'44*+.('7/1'0/+7*/1*;./79/;'44:*'
7&0J+.K/7(*,+.)5*'7B*9'77+0
B&5+710.'0&*'*1/(7/,/9'70*0.'9K*.&9+.B
/7*B&G&4+;/7(*+.('7/1'0/+7'4*9';'9/0:
1)92*'1*J+)4B*5&&0*:+).*B&1/.&B
+)09+5&1*/7*02/1*'.&'E

PORAR$" IS

S&B=./B(&

!"!RR

?;+.0&B*8+)7B'0/+7

6+*;.+G/B&*9';'9/0:*=)/4B/7(*0+
G+4)70'.:*'7B*9+55)7/0:
+.('7/1'0/+71A*/7*+.B&.*0+*'92/&G&
/5;.+G&B*+)09+5&1*,+.*:+)7(
;&+;4&*02.+)(2*=&00&.*<)'4/0:
?;+.0*,+.*[&G&4+;5&70*;.+H&901E

?;+.0&B*/1*/01&4,*'*(.'70C5'K/7(
+.('7/1'0/+7A*J/02*,.&&*9'12*.&1&.G&1*+,
H)10*)7B&.*P$5*'7B*'1*1)92A*9'77+0*=&
1&&7*'1*'*;./+./0:*,+.*6.)10*,)7B/7(E*_0
2'1*'5;4&*9';'9/0:*0+*,)7B*02/1*J+.K
/01&4,A*12+)4B*/0*1+*B&1/.&E

P!LRA!#U IS

T&105/710&.

!"!RL

62&*I&70.&*,+.
_77+G'0/+7*/7
h+4)70'.:*F90/+7
YI_hF\

-/((&.*-+'0i*'*;.+H&90*0+*B&G&4+;A
;/4+0*'7B*.+44*+)0*&,,/9/&70*'7B
&,,&90/G&*;1:92+4+(/9'4*2&'402
1&.G/9&1*0+*1+9/'4*&D94)1/+7*,+9)1&B
92'./0/&1*'7B*1+9/'4*&70&.;./1&1E

62&*;.+;+1'4*/1*&11&70/'44:*0+*1);;+.0*'
;/4+0*;.+H&90*0+*B&5+710.'0&*02&
;+0&70/'4*G'4)&*+,*';;4:/7(*02&*=)1/7&11
5+B&4*+,*;1:92+4+(/9'4*2&'402*0+
92'./0/&1E*F1*1)92*/0*/1A*'0*02/1*10'(&A*0++
,'.*.&5+G&B*,.+5*=&/7(*9&.0'/7*+,
B&4/G&./7(*:+).*/70&7B&B*+)09+5&1E

P!!#A^L" IS

_14/7(0+7

Total Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector (4 items) £326,917

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 199



!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

8')*4$;.-)K,$>CH$+-"3,? LCMCNCMHOH

P
age 200



Committee: Date(s): Item no. 

The City Bridge Trust 15th May 2014  

 

Subject: 

Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated Authority 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 
This Report draws your attention to 6 expenditure items which, since your last 
meeting, have been approved under delegated authority. 
 

Three of these items are as grants and one a Strategic Initiative. The two 
remaining are for the costs of Eco-audits, where no monies are paid to recipient 
organisations, rather the funds approved are used by the Trust to commission 
and appoint qualified professionals to undertake individual audits for the named 
charities. 
 

The total amount of expenditure and number of items approved under 
delegated authority this financial year (inclusive of those below) are shown in 
Table 1. 
 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 
 

Organisation      Amount and Purpose of Grant 
 
Grants 
 

 

Aspire £1,800 for the costs of commissioning and 
independent Walk and Talk audit and design 
appraisal to inform and ensure best practice on 
access issues. 
 
 

Tax Volunteers £2,850 for one year towards Tax Volunteers for 
home visits to Londoners aged over 75 years. 
 
 

Tricycle Theatre Company £5,000 for the costs of commissioning an 
independent design appraisal to inform and 
ensure best practice on access issues. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14b

Page 201



Strategic Initiative  

Human Trafficking Foundation £22,500 to fund a feasibility study into establishing 
a pilot to deliver improved after-care/support for 
survivors of Modern Day Slavery.  
 
 

 
Eco-audits 
 

 

St Edward's Church and 
Development Project 

£2,000 (£400 x 5 days) for the provision of an eco-
audit. 
 
 

St Matthew's Church Surbiton £2,000 (£400 x 5 days) for the provision of an eco-
audit. 
 
 
 

 
Table 1 
Summary of delegated authority spend for the financial year to date 
 
 

Applications at 
Committee 

Delegated authority < 
£5k including eco-

audits 
  

Delegated authority < 
£25k 
  

  £ Number £ Number 

April 2014 14,900  4 17,000  1 

May 2014 13,650 5 22,500 1 

Total for year to date 28,550 9  39,500  2 

 
 
 
Recommendation 
That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 
Tel:  020 7332 3186 
Date report written:  02/05/2014 

Page 202



Committee: Date(s): Item no. 

The City Bridge Trust 15th May 2014  

 

Subject: 

Withdrawn & Lapsed Applications  

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 
This Report draws your attention to one application which has been 
subsequently withdrawn by the applicant. 
 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 
 
Withdrawn Applications: 
 
Organisation      Purpose of Request 
 
Age UK Brent “To encourage healthy living amongst older 

people aged 65 and over through delivering 
activities including: health advice; physical 
activities; exercise classes; and arts and crafts”. 
 
 

As this application insufficiently met your priorities 
the organisation has withdrawn it in order to 
submit a more focused proposal. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
Total Withdrawn Applications: 1 
Total Lapsed Applications: 0 
 
 
Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 
Tel:  020 7332 3186 
Date report written:  01/05/14 

Agenda Item 14c

Page 203



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

City Bridge Trust 

 

 

15/05/2014 

Subject:  

Variations to Grants previously awarded 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Information 

Summary 

This report advises Members of variations to 4 grants agreed by the Chief 
Grants Officer since your last meeting. 

 
Recommendation 

That Members receive this report and note its contents. 

 

 
Main Report 

 
Since your last meeting variations to the grants as outlined below have been agreed 
by the Chief Grants Officer, in line with the revised delegated procedure for the 
amendment of grants as agreed by your Committee in October 2004. 
 
Merton MIND 
In May 2008 £120,000 over three years was awarded towards the salary and 
running costs of a Co-ordinator of a project working with older people. The project 
got off to a slow start and never fully achieved the desired momentum in year 2 with 
the result that the third year’s tranche (£40,000) was revoked in March 2013. The 
organisation has recently decided to close down and on closing its books discovered 
that there was a sum of £6,500 unspent from the year 2 instalment – which has now 
been returned to the Trust. 
 
Indian Cultural Society Drop In Day Centre 
In February 2012 you awarded £10,000 for a third and final year’s support of the 
general services for older people. Although the grant was formally accepted at the 
time it was never drawn down – despite several communications from your officers. 
Recently it was discovered that the organisation had undergone some internal 
difficulties in 2012/2013, from which it is only now starting to emerge. Given the 
timespan and the context it is no longer appropriate to release the grant hence the 
full amount has been revoked. 
 
Fuel Theatre Ltd 
£64,100 over three years was approved in November 2010 for a project to develop 
disabled people’s access to innovative theatre projects in London. Although 
monitoring throughout has been satisfactory the organisation has been unable to 

Agenda Item 14d

Page 205



spend the full amount in each of the three years. Whilst some carry-over of funds 
was approved in years 1 and 2 there was an unspent balance of £9,493 at the end of 
year 3. The organisation requested that these funds be used in an extended period 
but only £700 could be seen as within the scope of the original grant hence the 
balance of £8,793 has been written back. 
 
KIDS 
In May 2009 a grant of £130,000 (£45k; £45k, £40k) was awarded for a project 
enabling young disabled people to support their peers. The project encountered 
some structural variations and underspends on the grant along the way with the 
result that funds totalling £3,429 were due to be repaid to the Trust after completion 
in November 2013. These funds have now been received and written back. 

 
 
 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 206



 

 

Committee(s): Date(s): Item no. 

The City Bridge Trust 15th May 2014  

 

Subject: 

Reports on Monitoring Visits 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 
You receive two sample monitoring visit reports at each of your meetings. 
These are in addition to the two substantial monitoring reports you receive 
annually.  One of these, a report reflecting on issues arising from the 
monitoring and evaluation of grants was presented to your February 2013 
meeting whilst a statistical monitoring report looking at trends in your grant-
making was presented to your November 2013 meeting. 
 
Reports to this Committee are from visits to the Nehemiah Project and 
Attend, both awarded grants under your Positive Transitions to Independent 
Living programme. 
 
You support Nehemiah’s work with ex-offenders. This is a residential 
programme helping clients to address the underlying reasons for their 
offending history. The visit involved the opportunity to meet several 
residents. 
 
Your grant to Attend supports their work with people who have a newly 
acquired brain injury. This highly-regarded charity helps its clients to build 
practical skills that enable them to live more independent lives, and to 
improve their employment prospects. Mrs Littlechild took part in the visit to 
Attend. 
 

Recommendation 

That Members receive this report and note its contents. 
 

 
 
Contact: 
Tim Wilson 
Tel:  020 7332 3716 
Email:  tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk   
Date report written:  01/05/2014 

Agenda Item 14e

Page 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 
Nehemiah Project 

Grant ref: 
10505 

Programme area: 
Positive Transitions to 
Independent Living\f)  
Resettlement of ex-offenders 
leaving custody 
 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 
19/05/2011: A grant of £75,000 over three years (3 x £25,000) towards the salary costs of a full-
time Supported Housing Worker.  
 

Visiting Grants Officer: Tim Wilson 
 

Date of meeting: 5 February 2014 
 

Met with:  
John Patience (Chief Executive), Olivia Kilbee (Fundraising Manager), Elekwa Onwuchekwa 
(Supported Housing Officer) and various residents. The post-holder funded by the Trust (Barbara 
Holder) was on sick-leave at time of the visit. 
 

1. Introduction to the organisation:  
Nehemiah supports men who have a history of offending, helping them to understand, address and 
break free from the root causes of their harmful behaviours. Established in 1996, it runs from two 
residential properties in South London, providing a structured programme that helps men make the 
transition to independent living. Through a series of group and individual meetings each client 
examines the reasons why they offend, and receives support to move towards new patterns of 
behaviour.  
 
Nehemiah describes the work as a “tough love programme”. It only works with clients who are 
willing to change and who pass the organisation’s risk assessment. Men are asked to leave the 
programme if they do not adhere to an agreed code of conduct.  
 

2. The project funded:  
Following a successful pilot programme in 2010, where Nehemiah tested the viability of supporting 
its service through a combination of grant funding and housing benefit from residents, the charity 
applied to City Bridge Trust for a grant in 2011.  
 
Prospective residents attend interview, and are only accepted if they have already stopped 
drinking and / or using drugs. They pay their housing benefit to Nehemiah to cover the costs of 
their stay, whilst keeping any job seeker benefit or wages for themselves. 
 
Nehemiah sought funding towards the salary costs of a Supported Housing Worker. This post-
holder works closely with residents, monitoring their progress and supporting them to achieve their 
goals. This is a key role within the charity, helping ensure that the organisation can deliver its 
intensive programme called “A New Future”.  
 

3. Work delivered to date:  
During the first year Nehemiah’s Supported Housing Worker supported 18 men who were resident 
in the charity’s Streatham property. The house has eight bed spaces and men stay for 12 weeks 
before moving on to the charity’s Clapham property. The Streatham house is the first residential 
environment for men entering the Nehemiah programme. 80% of clients come straight from prison 
through the probation services. 
 Page 209



 
During the second year 26 men were resident in Streatham, 16 of whom completed the 
programme. Unfortunately, the first year’s monitoring report did not record how many men 
completed the three month programme, but during the visit the charity reported that they have 
reviewed and improved the schedule of activities to make these more engaging for the 
participants, suggesting that they have been seeking to improve completion rates. 
 
The programme, called “A New Future” runs on a rolling basis with new residents joining the 
activities throughout the year. New residents are allowed to observe activities to begin with, to help 
them gauge whether the programme is right for them. If it is, then mornings are dedicated to time 
spent looking at behaviour and resettlement issues such as housing, money management and 
family relationships. The morning workshops are intended to help the men live together more 
harmoniously, and to provide each other with support. Afternoon sessions are personalised 
depending on the needs of the individual resident. There is frequent drug and alcohol testing to 
ensure that clients abide by the rules of the programme. 
 
4. Difference made:  
Including the pilot year, Nehemiah has worked with 75 men, 37 of whom have completed the full 
three-month programme. 25 men went on to employment, 5 to further training and 9 to voluntary 
work. None of the men re-offended during their time with Nehemiah, and all stayed substance free. 
All men moved on to safe and secure accommodation following their time at the programme. 
 
Nehemiah tries to remain in contact with men after they complete the programme but this is not 
always straightforward as some seek to ‘erase’ anything that connects them to their offending past. 
Of the 37 ‘graduates’, the charity is still in contact with 16 men, two of whom reoffended within two 
years of completing the programme and one of whom re-commenced abusing substances.  
 
During the visit I had the opportunity to discuss Nehemiah’s work with two residents Brian (55) has 
a long history of offending but spoke very positively both about his commitment to change, and the 
value of Nehemiah’s programme for him at a time in his life when he was starting to fear the future. 
Ben (27) has also spent time in prison, and is battling alcoholism. He is now working towards 
establishing his own business and again spoke appreciatively of the support the charity has given 
him. 
 
5. Grants Administration:  
The charity has submitted two monitoring reports on the grant - the first judged ‘satisfactory’ and 
the second ‘good’. The most recent report was received on 6 September 2013 and included clear 
beneficiary data, case examples and client testimonies. Accounts identify the City Bridge Trust 
grant as required by the conditions of funding. 
 

6. Concluding comments:  
Nehemiah’s support programme is under constant review and the charity continues to look for 
ways to improve the outcomes of its work. The charity has developed more rigorous assessments 
to gauge prospective residents and Nehemiah has also appointed two full-time caretakers to 
strengthen the residential community. Since City Bridge Trust funding was awarded the charity has 
been successful in raising funds from several other grant-makers, and its website now includes 
positive testimonies from a number of supporters including the local MP. 
 

 

Page 210



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 
Attend 

Grant ref: 
10489 

Programme area: 
Positive Transitions to 
Independent Living - Newly 
acquired disability 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 
17/03/2011: £120,000 over three years (£39,000; £40,000; £41,000) to help people with acquired 
brain injury move into employment, education and volunteering, subject to sight of a satisfactory 
budget for 2011-12  

Visiting Grants Officer: Jemma Grieve 
Combes accompanied by Mrs. Littlechild 
 

Date of meeting: 26th February 2014 
 

Met with: David Wood (CEO); Anthony Mercier (Project Officer from 1st Sept 2013) 
 

1. Introduction to the organisation: 
Attend is a national charity which supports and expands the roles volunteers play in connection 
with health.  It began in 1949 as the National League of Friends, creating a volunteer scheme for 
volunteers in hospitals.  It still functions as the umbrella body for 700 Hospital Friends groups 
nationwide, but it has expanded into other direct projects around healthy options for hospital food 
retailers, supporting stroke victims, and accredited training in volunteer management. 
 

2. The project funded: 
Your grant supported an emerging project to help those with Acquired Brain Injury (ABI).  ABI is 
the largest cause of acquired disability in the UK working age population.  Research by the charity 
Headway has established that up to 10,000 Londoners per year acquire some form of brain injury.  
These people undergo medical rehabilitation, but are then faced with making the transition to 
independent living alone.  The Attend ABI service offers specialist services to help people manage 
the cognitive, behavioural and emotional effects of brain injury to help them enter and/or sustain 
employment, education or training.  Alongside work placements, job coaching and ongoing 
support, volunteering is used as an integral part of the programme build new skills and self-
confidence.  The project started in April 2011. 
 

3. Work delivered to date: 
In year 2 of the grant 80 clients took part in the employment programme and the organisation 
reports that numbers have been at a similar level in year 3.  Following initial assessment, each 
client is assigned a job coach to understand their goals; identify realistic employment options; 
develop their CV; and build up interview skills.  They are also assigned a separate mentor who will 
be their main point of contact; help them resolve any issues; liaise with family, friends and outside 
agencies; and monitor progress.  Clients attend job coaching and formal taught sessions which run 
over 3 days each week at Attend’s offices in central London.  Sessions start at 9am to help clients 
get used to travelling in rush hour traffic.  Within the first few weeks Attend aims to set up a 
volunteering placement for each client.  Once a month clients have the opportunity to take part in a 
mock interview.  Attend works with companies including BT, John Lewis and Barclays who 
volunteer their time and space to provide these.  The companies run the interviews in line with their 
usual practices to make them as realistic as possible.   
 
Alongside the employment programme Attend has developed the Friends of Attend ABI user 
group.  This runs a range of social and learning activities which have included 6-week courses in 
Disability Law, cake decorating, Arts into Life (with Tate Modern) and story-telling.  They also 
include regular film nights and discussion sessions.  One enterprising student volunteer has Page 211



successfully organised a group visit to Madame Tussauds. 
 

4. Difference made: 
In the year 2 monitoring form the organisation reported that of the 80 clients taking part in the 
employment programme 68 had progressed into work, education or volunteering.  Feedback 
showed that 85% of clients had an increased understanding of what employers are looking for; 
78% had increased confidence in their abilities and skills; and 70% identified that they had now set 
realistic career and life goals.   
 
On the day of the visit one of the taught sessions was taking place.  This session was focused on 
giving feedback on mock interviews that had taken place the day before.   Clients were able to 
watch video recordings of their own interviews which they reflected on as a group.  The benefits of 
this were that others in the group were much more likely to pull out positive elements of the 
interview.  The project officer delivering the session was clearly confident in their delivery and 
passionate about working with the variety of clients in the group.   
 
We were able to speak to several of the clients who talked very candidly about their Acquired Brain 
Injury and the impact it had on them.  They clearly valued the support provided by Attend ABI and 
were focused on their tasks.  We were fortunate to be there on a day that one of the clients who, 
despite several setbacks, had persevered and just been offered the job they wanted.  They said 
they couldn’t stop smiling! 
 

5. Grants Administration:  
Monitoring reports have been received for the first 2 years of the grant and the final report is due 
shortly (31st March 2014).  The postholder was delivering a session on the day of the visit and we 
were able to meet him during a break.  City Bridge Trust’s grant is acknowledged as a restricted 
fund within the organisation’s accounts. 
 

6. Concluding comments: 
This is a valuable project that clearly has a profound impact on the clients it works with. Staff and 
volunteers were knowledgeable and dedicated to working with the wide range of clients.  The 
project has grown considerably since City Bridge Trust first funded the project having securing 
funding from BIG for Volunteering Solutions for People with Acquired Brain Injury and Access to 
Work (ATW) from the Department of Work and Pensions.  In addition the user led FAABI network 
has proved so popular that is has now registered as an independent charity in its own right. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 212



Agenda Item 18

Page 213

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 215

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Order of the Court of Common Council
	6 Minutes
	7 Appointment to the Social Investment Board
	8 Outstanding Items
	9 Progress Report and Events
	Events Table

	10 Wembley National Stadium Trust Update
	11 Grant Applications Statistical Report
	Grant applications statistical report - May 14

	12 Grants and Strategic Initiatives Recommendations and Assessments - Working With Londoners
	12a Resource for London
	13 Grants and Strategic Initiatives Recommendations and Assessments - Investing in Londoners
	13a The New Cross Gate Trust
	13b Room to Heal
	13c Contemporary Dance Trust
	13d Disablement Association Hillingdon (DASH)
	13e Greenwich+Docklands Festivals
	13f Parents and Abducted Children Together (PACT)
	13g FareShare
	13h Prison Advice and Care Trust
	13i Worldwide Volunteering (WWV)
	13j Local Accountancy Project
	13k Volunteer Centre Hounslow
	14a Grants Recommended for Rejection
	Reject IiL

	14b Grants Approved under Delegated Authority
	14c Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications
	14d Variations to Grants
	14e Reports on Monitoring Visits
	Monitoring visit report Nehemiah
	Monitoring visit report Attend

	18 Non-Public Minutes
	19 Strategic Initiatives:  Beacon Fellowship Awards

